15 December 2014

Most Reverend William Wright
Bishop of Maitland-Newcastle
841 Hunter Street

Newcastle West NSW 2301

Dear Bishop,

Formal Advice to the Bishop of Maitland-Newcastle from his
Independent Advisory Panel regarding Monsignor Allan Hart

On 24 June 2014 you established a Panel, which came to comprise the undersigned:

To examine and report on adverse comments made in the Cunneen
Report concerning Monsignor Hart.... [a] serving priest in the Diocese,
and to advise Bishop William Wright of what further action, if any, ought
to be taken in relation to [his] holding of Church offices in the Diocese
and [his] continued public ministry.

On 5 August the Diocese invited submissions from the public with a closing date of 19
August. Seventy two submissions were received, some from multiple respondents.

On 1 October the Panel, having considered the Cunneen Report, the transcript of the
evidence of Monsignor Hart, and the submissions received from members of the public,
concluded unanimously that Monsignor Hart had a case to answer. We caused a letter to be
sent to him on 30 October setting out our preliminary findings and invited him to show
cause against their confirmation. Our letter was in the following terms:

Dear Monsignor Hart,

The members of the Advisory Panel established by Bishop Wright to
consider your conduct in relation to Father McAlinden in 1993 and before
the Special Commission of Inquiry in 2013 have considered the Report of
the Commission, the transcript of your evidence before the Commission
and the submissions received from the public. Having done so, we have
come unanimously to the conclusion that you have a case to answer in
relation to your conduct in 1993 after AJ complained to you that she had
been sexually abused by Father McAlinden many years before, and your
conduct in 2013 when giving evidence during the public hearings of the
Commission.

The Panel accepts the conclusion of Cunneen SC that your conduct in
1993 following receipt of AJ’s complaint did not disclose a prima facie
offence under s 316 of the Crimes Act, and the opinion of the Very
Reverend Professor lan Waters that your conduct in 1993 and 2013 did
not involve a breach of Canon Law. The Panel also finds that, with one
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exception, your conduct in 1993 did not involve a breach of the 1992
Protocol issued by the Australian Catholic Bishops’ Conference Special
Issues Sub-Committee.

The Panel notes the findings of Cunneen SC (Overview, vol 1 p. 15, vol 2
paragraphs 12.216-7) that you took “no steps to counsel and encourage
either AJ or Bishop Clarke” to report AJ’s allegations to the Police, and
that AJ would have reported McAlinden “had she received the blessing,
support and pastoral care” of clergy, including yourself. The Panel also
notes the finding that you should have done both of these things. The
Panel further finds that there is material before them which would
sustain the conclusion that you were directly involved in arranging for
Father McAlinden to leave Australia for the United Kingdom (paragraphs
12.138,12.160-1,12.212-3) contrary to Protocol instruction paragraph 8.4
that “the accused must not be aided to escape the jurisdiction”.

The 1992 Protocol referred to “the high risk of recidivism” (paragraph
13.1) in such cases. This may have required you to do your best to
prevent the abuse of other children by urging AJ and Bishop Clarke to
report Fr McAlinden to the police. One way to achieve this may have
been to object to the proposal that he be funded for travel to the United
Kingdom. Instead you may be seen in a sense as “passing by on the other
side”. The Panel’s major concerns relate to your evidence before the
Commission and the manner in which it was apparently given as found by
Cunneen SC. The Commissioner expressly rejected some of your
evidence (paragraphs 12.209, 12.212, 12.220, 20.25). She also found that
you gave inconsistent evidence (paragraph 20.22), that you were
reluctant to disclose the truth (paragraph 20.22), were not prepared “to
give a full and candid account of your knowledge” (paragraph 12.23),
that some of your evidence was “misleading”, and that you sought “to
downplay your participation” (paragraph 20.24). She concluded
(paragraph 20.21) that you were “an unsatisfactory and unimpressive
witness”.

The Panel, having read the transcript, and considered the submissions
from those members of the public who attended the public hearings
when you gave evidence, sees no reason at the moment to disagree with
any of those findings. However you have not yet had an opportunity to
persuade us to reach a different conclusion on some or all of those
findings.

The Panel is well aware of the potential injustice of judging conduct in
the distant past by the very different standards of the present.
Nevertheless, as at present advised, we see no injustice in judging your
conduct in the witness box of the Commission in 2013 against
contemporary standards in the community. In any event it may be
appropriate for the Panel to apply higher standards, those expected by
Christ, His Church, and the faithful laity, of a priest and elder of the
Church and the Diocese.

When the Commission was established Bishop Wright wrote in his
pastoral letter of 1 March 2013:

“As the Bishop of Maitland-Newcastle, | enjoin any member of
our clergy...who has any information that may be relevant to
the [Cunneen] enquiry, to come forward... and give them your
information.”
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On 13 March 2013 the Bishop spoke to Diocesan clergy on a written
presentation which contained the following statements which might be
thought relevant:

“The Diocese will help the truth to be known by...

1. Demonstrating a complete and genuine commitment
to...supporting the Inquiry.

6. Encouraging all members of the Diocese to make
themselves available to the...Inquiry.

7. ...We have an opportunity to ‘get it out into the open’...

9. ...Today our Diocese continues to cooperate with the
Inquiry.”

In his further pastoral letter of 28 June 2013, shortly before the public
hearings of the Cunneen Commission were due to begin on 1 July, the
Bishop wrote:

“l have repeatedly committed the Diocese to co-operating
fully with the State Commission, and | renew that undertaking
today.”

In giving evidence in the public hearings you were, of course,
representing yourself. It may also be appropriate for the Panel to see you
as also representing the Church, the Diocese, and the other priests in
the Diocese and to be seen as such by the laity and the general public.
You gave your evidence at a time when the criminal conduct of some
priests, and the response of leaders of the Diocese at the time, when
they became aware of this conduct, were under intense public scrutiny.
The Panel may be entitled to conclude that the Bishop’s wish, or perhaps
instruction, for the Diocese to co-operate with the Inquiry in getting to
the truth, required any priest giving evidence during public hearings to
do so with conspicuous honesty and candour. In an appropriate case this
would extend to the public confession of past errors and shortcomings.

The findings of the Commission referred to above, unless displaced,
would indicate that you failed in these respects when giving evidence in
the public sessions. This view is supported by the reaction, reflected in
their submissions to the Panel, of those who were present when you gave
your evidence.

The Panel invites you to show cause against these preliminary views, and
to do so in writing sent or delivered to Mr Sean Tynan at Zimmerman
Services c/- of the Diocese within 21 days of the date of this letter.

On 25 November Mr Tynan received the Monsignor’s 20 page response which is an Appendix
to this report. His response concluded:

99. Due to ongoing and serious ill health, Monsignor Hart has decided
to bring forward his retirement, which in the ordinary course
would have commenced in February 2015. Bishop Wright has
been or shortly will be directly informed of that decision and the
retirement may well have taken effect by the time this submission
is considered in detail by the IAP.
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100. His retirement is not, and should not be interpreted as, a
concession by Monsignor Hart beyond the terms of this
submission. "

On 20 August the Panel was advised by the Very Reverend Professor lan B Waters that
Monsignor Hart, in giving evidence to the Special commission of Enquiry, did not fail to fulfil
the canonical obligations of his offices in the Diocese.

Accordingly, if the Panel found that further action by you was appropriate in his case, the
most adverse action that could have been recommended would have been that the
Monsignor be asked to resign his parish. Since you have given a public undertaking to
publish our report, such a recommendation would, in all probability, have made his further
public ministry in the parish and Diocese untenable.

We have been advised by Mr Tynan that Monsignor Hart tendered his resignation to you
when you met on 3 December. In these circumstances we consider that nothing is to be
gained by us now deciding what our recommendation would otherwise have been and giving
necessarily lengthy reasons for that recommendation. We therefore recommend that you
accept the Monsignor's resignation if you have not already done so.

Yours faithfully:

PANEL MEMBER’S
NAME WITHHELD
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Patricia Crennan

A oLt T

Ken Handley Terry Lovat

PANEL MEMBER’S

NAME WITHHELD
Christopher de Souza
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APPENDIX TO THE FORMAL ADVICE TO WILLIAM WRIGHT,
BISHOP OF MAITLAND-NEWCASTLE

Submission of Very Rev. Allan Hart
to the Independent Advisory Panel
dated 21 November 2014

































































